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the Catholic chapel at the MSP because of a derogatory 
statement made by this prisoner Concerning President 
KENNEDY as aL Catholic. He does not recall the name Of 
this prisoner and nd charges were filed in connection 
with the incident. He denied that this individual could 
have been subject JAMES EARL RAY; He does recall Father 
SCHAFER was at that time the Chaplain but understands that 
Father SCHAFER now has a parish in California, Missouri. 
The above-described incidenttook place at the MSP in 
1963. -

VELANTI recalled that wb®#7he was in the MSP 
A Bill was occupied by Negroes; howover, he understands 
it now houses trustees. , ;

VELANTI stated he could-recall many prisoners 
making derogatory remarks concerning.Negroes but he advised 
that inasmuch as he is Catholi?, derogatory remarks regarding 
Catholics were riot made in his presence.; :

When questioned concerning any individuals who might 
dislike him and furnish false information concerning his 
alleged association with RAY,VELANTI mentioned the following 
individuals: : \

JOHNNY SHELTON, white, male, age 28, believed 
presently bab£ in MSP on an armed robbery charge from 
Kansas City, Missouri;

MIKE. NOVOGRADIC (phonetic) , white, male, age 26, 
believed to be doing 25 years at MSP on a charge of assault 
and molestation from Kansas City; .

’’BUGA RED” TOWNSEND, whitqi male, doing life at 
MSP for killing a priest.
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JOHN PAUL VELANTI upon re-interview on May 12, 
1968, stated after considering the matter he now recalls 
one JIMMY RAYE (phonetic), a white male, age 27, 6’1,”, 
150 pounds, left handed, who was somewhat active in 
gambling activities at the Missouri State Penitentiary 
(MSP). This individual was also a basketball player -
at the institution. RAYE is still believed to be at 
MSP and at one time an older brother, believed to be 
LARRY RAYE, was ah inmate at the penitentiary. VELANTI 
is of the opinion this RAYE may be confused with subject 
JAMES EARL RAY by the person furnishing information regarding 
an association between him and subject RAY. p

VELANTI recalled JIJOY RAYE (phohetic)> h^ 
been in trouble in connection with a gambling debt owed to 
TEX MARTIN, MSP inmate, described as a white male doing 
a 25 year sentence from Kansas City on a rape charge. 
MARTIN was also active in running gambling games. VELANTI 
pursuaded MARTIN to ’’lay off” RAYE in connection with^ 
gambling debt owed him. He further recalled this incident 
having taken place in 1963 or. 1964 at which ■time JIMMY RAYE 
Was housed in C Hall while he, VELANTI, was residing ®h 
G Hall. ' - • . ‘ ; :

VELANTI stated his wife’s true name at the/time'She 
married her was BETTYE PITTARD. While in MSP he corresponded 
with her under this name as well as under the names/BETTYE 
PRITCHARD, BETTYE PETERSON and BETTYE VELANTI. He was not 
positive but believed her maiden name to be PETERSON. His 
wife under the name BETTYE PITTARD was employed for several 
years as a key punch operator for the Louisiana - Arkansas. 
Railroad at both their Shreveport and Atlanta offices/ Her 
parents and relatives are believed to reside in Atlanta. He 
recalled that BETTYE Was at one time a member of the downtown 
branch of the Alcoholics Anonymous Club in Shreveport, Louisiana
She also 
Atlanta.

may have been a member of Alcoholics Anonymous in

involved
With respect to a date on Which he could have been 

hecommitting a crime in Atlanta, VELANTI advised 
was released /from the penitentiary at Leavenworth, Kansas,: 
on July 27, 1958, and picked up in Kansas City on February 9, 
1959. During the period between these two dates he spent most
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of his time as an employee of the Monte Young Carnivai 
which operates put of Salt Lake City/, This carnival/wa;s 
operated by a female, one NINA (last/name unknown). : 
During this employment VELAN/TI worked under the name: and 
Social Security Number of a sheep herder by the name of 
WREZ XYLOIX (phohou^ced RAY ZELWAH)v When the carniyal ?
closed the season in October he went to Shreveport, Louisiana, 
where he resided with his wife, BETTYE, until the time he » 
was picked up in February 1959 in Kansas City. He stated 
that he used- the name XYLOTX in order to avoid•possible.. 1 
arrest in'the AState. of OregonJ'Where’-he was wanted for........... :
investigation armed robbery / ^He advised -that Oregon had 
placed a detainer against hihi upon; his release from 
Leavenworth, but that he had ’’beat’’ this detainer at Leavenworth 
Kansas, and was never returned to, Oregon,

. During the course of the interview 
the name of a former MSP inmate/presently in 
area, one-JAMES-CARPENTER, who might-.be,in a 
furnish information.concerning activities.of 
the MSP, . ‘ / ' - ■ . " /

VELANTI mentioned 
the St,.. Louis, 
position to ' .
subject RAY in
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1 Date " W 23, 1968

JOHN.PAUL VELANTI called.to.indicate his concern that 
individuals, 'unknown to him, . had, linked his name with that of ■ 
subject RAY, whom he-Wpuld-not'actually'W He expressed .
the opinion that’ c.6Hain /’individuals- wbuidj"like' to see him.- . - 

• charged with violating"'hia parole, and Vrbturhed to the 'Missouri' 
State, Penitentiary "to .’’get. even, with him” "for ."things he h<B"" 
not done. . . . . ' - " ' .

■ ' He expressed a "desire’ to cooperate' in Any'Way in'. / ’
connection with this ..investigation, and, mentioned he had •
..visited .with another ..former inmate." at ^"tbhe;-Missouri State .
Penitentiary who claimed ft® W seen subject JAMES EARL RAY , 
*ih St'. Louis approximately-two weeks af^et"the' escape of RAY ' 
from- the .Missouri State''Penitentiary. - ^- 'declined to -identify 
this person ©ver the" telephone .but advised.-he-Wight .furnish . 
this individual’s name in a .personal interview/at a later' .
time., • . - - ■ " ' - - - . : , ' - .

VELANTI indicated that in the conversation with/ 
this individual they discussed the fact that RAY was supposed 
to have walked out Of the Missouri State. Penitentiary witiv - ' 
visitors, rather than haying escaped, concealed ..in a bread box,
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1 n-.- May 24^1968

_ j01|it-&AUL;y&iMNTl5ag^^ .St. Louis Federal/
’ Bureau‘-of- Invest-igat ion-Offi-ce---to\promisp-his^ . • -
operation-- and ■ indicalp~ a A^ feeling; of,...apprehension . .
.thatsomething ..might'happen which might possibly lead to the -. ' . 
revocation, of.-his parpl&<— .

■ - VALENTI-mentioned'-in fhevcon^ei?&ati^h- that--!tiesand-'’^ . ■
JpES-H. CAEPENTER had visited - JOHN /EUGENE;.-GAWRON" on. the " r .
■previous night. He^stated^GAWRON-mentioned he had been talking

- to the EBI... ’ —- —'

• ; VALENTI advised that both he aind OAIlPENTER believed
that after having visited with GAWRON that GAWRON probably / 
harbored subject RAY, after his escape.-,from, the Missouri State 

■ Penitentiary.VALENTI;, however, stated that.GAWRO^ made.no - 
■ such admission in any statement actually;^ hiiii.,

■ . VALENTI promised to■ be aiert'zf6r'any .information. 1̂
which might be of value in efforts to J lobate^subject RAY. - ;

On
5/14/68 nl St. Louis, Missouri ■ . . Fil© # SL: 44-775

■ ■ SA CLETIS Bi BIDEWELL

by-------- ----—-- ——---——
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Date May 31, 1968

JOHN PAUL VELANTI, presently residing 3420 Cumberland, 
Maplewood, was interviewed at the St. Louis Office. He reiterated 
information previously furnished that he could not recall any specific' 
instance in which he met subject JAMES EARL RAY while in the Missouri 
State Penitentiary (MSP) although he may have done so. He also 
advised he had no contact with subject RAY prior to his incarcera­
tion in the MSP or since his release from that institution.

He denied that he'had recently obtained a revolver 
from any source and stated that .if JIMMY CARPENTER had obtained 
a gun he knew nothing about it. He went on to state that he was 
doing everything within his power to avoid violating his parole
and 
act

that obtaining a gun of any kind would be an extremely foolish 
on his partG '

MSP
With respect to his activities since his release from

on March 21, 1967, he stated he came immediately to
Missouri, and for a short period of time was empiyed by 
Furniture Company at 11th and Delmar. He resided for a 
time at Dismas House located at Ninth and Cole. Around 
1967, he obtained employment from the Bardgett Printing
Company, 
December, 
company, : 
worked as 
at Eighth 
announcer 
Illinois, 
there .

2035 Delmar, where he worked until he was laid

St. Louis, 
the Baris .
period of
May 3 or 4, 
and Publishing 
off -in'.

1967. Although he was employed steadily at the publishing 
he worked part time on a desk job at Dismas House and also 
a night cook quite a bit at John Clatto’s Place located

. and Delmar. He started working part time as a radio
1 in October, 1967 at Our Lady of the Snows, Belleville, 
and is presently employed full time as a radio announcer

. VELANTI advised that a former inmate of the MSP one RUSSELL
BRANNEN advised him in a conversation two or three weeks ago that 
he, BRANNEN, had on one occasion observed subject RAY in St. Louis 
subsequent to his escape from the MSP. BRANNEN stated that this was 
approximately ten days after RAY’s escape and he saw him in the 
vicinity of the 1800 block of Mississippi Street in South St. Louis. 
He went on to say that BRANNEN made the statement that RAY did not 
escape from the MSP in a bread truck as generally reported but walked 
avay from the institution with a group of visitors who were leaving.
According to VELANTI, BRANNEN did not indicate he knew of any particular 
individual who might have'assisted RAY in this escape. He could not ' 
furnish the exact address of BRANNEN but stated he believed he was 
Still on parole to Missouri State parole officers in St/Lmiis,------  
Missouri area.
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VELANTI was questioned concerning the present whereabouts 
of JIMMY CARPENTER and he stated that although he had not seen . 
JIMMY in several days he understood he was still residing at 1817 
Rutger using the name JOHN MEZZO and employed as a cook at Clatto’s 
located at Eighth and Dhlmar. He advised he had learned CARPSNTER 
may^Ka.v^ entered the St. Louis City Hospital to have an eye operatiPh 
but had been unable to locate him and he also stated that CARPENTER 
had not reported to work for the last two nights at Clatk/s Restaurant. 
He promised to locate CARPENTER as soon as possible and have him call 
the St. Louis FBI Office. . -; ’ . ' . ■ . '■ ■

■ VELAWJ advised upon, questioning that he. had heard nothing 
whatsoever which would indicate to him that subject JAMES EARL RAY 
might have been involved in the armed robbery of the Alton, Illinois, 
Bank which occurred.in July, 196.7/’- • ■ ■.
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UNKNOWN SUBJECTS (2); 
BANK OF ALTON, ILLINOIS 
July 13, 1967
ST. LOUIS FILE: 91-3877

The following investigation was conducted by SA CLETIS . 
B. BIDEWELL at St. Louis, Missouri, on May 29, 1968:

BOB TYLER, Personnel Manager of Bardgett Printing and ; 
Publishing Company, 2035 Delmar, advised after checking his- records’ ’ 
that JOHN P, VELANTI obtained employment at his concern through 
Dismas House on April 5, 1967, and that his employment was terminated 
on December 5, 1967, due to reduction in the work force. He stated 
that VELANTI*s work as a printing estimator was very satisfactory 
and that he attended night school during the period of his employment 
to increase his efficiency in this capacity

Mr. TYLER advised that the employment records for that 
concern for July 13, 1967, reflect -that VELANTI punched in for work
at 7:49 AM and punched out for lunch at 11:59 AM. He 
in for work at 12:47 PM and punched out at the end of
6:03 PM. ■ ■ ■ ■ . ' ■ '

punched back 
the day at

. ' It is- noted that the robbery of the Bank, of
on July 13, 1967, was committed at L:35 PM; . ■ ’

Alton, Illinois

2025 RELEASE UNDER E.O. 14176
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May 14, 1968

JAMES (JIMMY) Ho CARPENTER, former Missouri
State Penitentiary (MSP) number 01761, presently residing 
1817 Rutger Street, St. Louis, Missouri, was interviewed 
on May 12, 1968. CARPENTER was born J at
Jonesboro, Arkansas. On May 1, 1967, he was released on 
parole from the MSP, Jefferson City, Missouri.

On June 1, 1967, CARPENTER was arrested in
St. LOuis, Missouri, on a charge of armed robbery and 
although not convicted on this charge he remained in the 
St. Louis City Jail for approximately nine months before 
being released at the time of his trial. Ek

Shortly after his release from MSPCARPENTER
advised he met subject JAMES EARL RAY on the street in the 
1800 block of South 11th Street and conversed with him for 
a few minutes'; According to CARPENTER, this date would have 
been around May 11, 1967, since he recalls he obtained employment 
on that date.in St; Louis. At the time Of this first contact 
subject RAY was wearing a mustache and mentioned the fact that 
he was ’’hot” and ha^ to be careful. He was dressed in a 
sweater and dark trousers and this visit with subject RAY . 
was very short. - ' ■ '

CARPENTER recalled seeing RAY on another occasion
on the street in the 1800 block of South 11th Street three 
or four days later. On this occasion he and subject RAY 
had a beer together in a tavern believed to be located on the 
west side of tile street in the 1800 block. Subject RAY 
stated he was? broke and CARPENTER loaned him $10. RAY ■ 
also mentioned he needed a "rod” to get hold of some.money and 
CARPENTER told him he was trying to go straight, had no 
pistol, and would not try to get one. a

CARPENTER, mentioned he saw RAY on one other occasion
two or three days later in approximately the same location. 
At this time he, CARPENTER, was in an automobile and RAY was 
on the street. He was of the opinion that RAY did not see 
him on this occasion. According to CARPENTER, although he does 
not recall the exact words of the conversation he got the 
impression from RAY that he was going to pull a holdup or 
robbery of some kind in St. Louis to get some money and then 
travel to the east side or somewhere in Illinois where he had

On 5/12/68 St. Louis, Missouri Fil® # SL; 44-775

. SA CLETIS B. BIDEWELL ' • ' ' ’
by ' SA WILLIAM H. WARFIELD ... CBB; pdp n^ di ctated 5/13/68

This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It Is'the property of the FBI .and.is loqnpd to 
your agency; It and its contents are not tq.be distributed outside your agency. , ■ ■ ... .

2025 RELEASE UNDER E.O. 14176



2

SL: 44-775

friends or relatives. He stated these individuals were 
not specifically mentioned but he got this impression 
from conversing with subject RAY,

CARPENTER advised subject RAY furnished no information 
concerning where he was staying in St, Louis and made no 
mention of associates or relatives with whom he might be 
associated or living, CARPENTER stated he did not observe 
RAY in company; with any other individual on any of the 
above-mentioned occasions, He did state that RAY mentioned 
in the conversation that he ’’walked out” of the MSP with , 
a group of visitors from the Outside, It was CARPEN^R’s ■ 
understanding that this was in connection with a balf'ganie 

that had been played at the penitentiary and that the date, approxi 
,SfMly,rRAY walked away was April 24, 1967. CARPENTER ;
was questioned .specifically concerning any information 
he might have 'as; to the identity of any individual assisting 
subject RAY in his escape and he stated he could furnish i . 
no in format ion ■what ever in this respect,. He' further ,-stated ' ' ■
he has not seen subject RAY since around May 18, 1967., and 
is not in possession of any information concerning his 
possible whereabouts since that time. .

CARPENTER advised he recalled subject RAY very well 
from his association with him at the MSP. He described RAY 
as a ’’loner” who participated in gambling in the penitentiary. 
He stated, however, that RAY spent so much of his time in 
solitary confinement due to his attempts to escape that he 
did not have much opportunity to participate in these activities. 
He advised that he was as close to RAY as anyone in the 
penitentiary and recalled that RAY took narcotics, and often 
came to his, CARPENTER’S, cell to converse and offer narcotics 
to CARPENTER. With regard to RAY’s closest associate at 
MSP, CARPENTER advised that he was as close to RAY as any 
inmate. He went bn to state that based on this association 
and his general knowledge of RAY it was hard for him'to imagine 
RAY being involved in the MARTIN LUTHER KING slaying.’ In 
this respect he stated he did not feel RAY would be motivated 
by animosity toward Dr. KING and was hot the type of individual 
who would be trusted by people wanting to dispose of KING. 
He knew of no connections that RAY had while in MSP which
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would afford him access to information regarding a planned 
assassination of Dr, KING. It is CARPENTER'S opinion 
that if RAY made such connections he did so while on the 
run subsequent to his escape/

CARPENTER recalled an inmate at MSP known as 
(first name unknown) COOLEY (phonetic) described as 
white male, 45 years old at the present time, 6’ tall, 
150 pounds, slender build, black hair. He stated this 
individual walked with a noticeable limp, believed to be 
in his right leg, and that the right leg was curved out 
noticeably. He advised that COOLEY was an inmate at MSP 
on two separate occasions. He believes that COOLEY was 
last released prior to 1960 when subject RAY entered MSP. 
COOLEY worked in the penitentiary kitchen. He described 
COOLEY as a "fanatic”. CARPENTER could relate no specific 
circumstances on<which he based his opinion that COOLEY '
was a fanatic, or'what COOLEY was fanatical about. CARPENTER ■ 
merely stated that COOLEY had "way out" ideas, and.that he, 
COOLEY, attempted to appear as an intellectual. He recalled 
that COOLEY read science and sex books.continually. Inasmuch 
as COOLEY’s last.release was prior to subject RAY’s incar­
ceration at MSP, CARPENTER does not believe there was any’ 
association between subject RAY and this COOLEY. CARPENTER 
knows of no organization known as COOLEY’s organization pY®> ” 
any group headed by COOLEY. ‘

During the interview CARPENTER mentioned an individual 
known to him as JACK (last name unknown) who in May of 1967 
was in charge of a rooming house at 1805 South 11th Street. 
CARPENTER met this individual while incarcerated in St. Louis 
subsequent to his arrest on June 1, 1967. It was his recollection 
that JACK (last name unknown) was arrested on June 2, 1967, 
suspected of burglary of a tavern located near his residence 
at 1805 South 11th.

During conversation with JACK (last name unknown), 
who was described as a white male, age 70, 6’ tall, 200 pounds, 
gray hair, subject RAY was discussed. Although JACK did not 
specifically say so, CARPENTER got the impression that RAY
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was 
him

probably living with him or staying part-time with 
at 1805 South 11th. He also recalled JACK mentioning

subject having a brother residing somewhere in the general 
area. Although CARPENTER could not recall the brother’s 
name he thought it‘ to be JOHN; JACK (last name unknown) 
advised it was his understanding that subject RAY, who was 
well known to him, was believed to hive walked away from 
the penitentiary following a ball game.

It was CARPENTER’S understanding that JACK (last 
name unknown) had never done any time in Missouri but had 
spent approximately 29 years in pehitentiarys in Illinois 
on charges of safe cracking, robbery,and so forth. At the 
time JACK was arrested in St. Louison June 2, 1967, he was 
extremely worried because his parole; out of Illinois did 
not expire for a;period of two of three more weeks. '

CARPENTER stated that;:.<during his incarceration ■ 
at MSP he "ran the store” for quite a period of time. He 
is presently employed as a cook for JOHNNY CLAYTO at '18th 
and Delmar Streets and plans to enter the St. Louis City 
Hospital in the near future for an eye operation to remove 
cataracts. About the time CARPENTER saw subject RAY in 
St,.' Louis he was employed for a short period of time as 
a cook in a cafeteria located in the Mart Building in St. Louis
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Date June 24, 1968

JAMES (JIMMY) H. CARPENTER was interviewed at the
Standard Service Station' located on the southeast corner of 
18th and Clark Streets where he spends most of his time. He 
still resides at 1817 Rutger Street, St. Louis. He has made 
arrangements to enter the St. Louis City Hospital.,., located on 
Lafayette Street, in the.near future to have an eye!.operation 
for the removal of-cataracts. ’

With reference to subject JAMES EARL RAY, CARPENTER
reiterated information previously furnished in this matter.
He stated RAY walked away from the Missouri State Penitentiary 
in the afternoon of April 23, 1967, and he, CARPENTER, was 
released on May 1, 1967. Approximately two weeks subsequent 
to his release he visited briefly with subject. RAY on South 11th 
Street in St. Louis bn two different occasions^.. On.the second 
occasion he had a drink with RAY in a bar, name unrecalled, in 
the 1800 block of South 11th and he loaned RAY $10 since he 
stated he was in need of money. RAY indicated he planned to 
obtain a gun possibly in East St. Louis, Illinois, and make a 
"score" in the near future.

CARPENTER in his brief visits with RAY got the impression
RAY was living with some of his relatives not far from the 1800 
block of South 11th, although RAY did not actually make a statement 
to that effect. '

CARPENTER stated that subject might have been residing
with JACK GAWRON, who resided in that area, but neither RAY 
nor GAWRON ever made'.a definite statement indicating that RAY 
was living with GAWRON. . .

CARPENTER repeated information previously"furnished
that although he considers himself one of subject RAY’s closest 
friends in the Missouri State Penitentiary, he hever^heard him 
make any statements dither in the penitentiary or after his 
escape that would link him in any way with the MARTIN LUTHER 
KING slaying. He went on to state, that he felt certain that if 
RAY is involved it is through RAY’s efforts to obtain money and 
not through any idealistic feelings or hate feelings that he 
might harbor.

CARPENTER exhibited a cooperative attitude and promised
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to call the 
immediately

St. Louis Federal Bureau of Investigation Office 
in the event he obtains any information which 
value in determining how subject RAY might have comemight be of _ . _

in possession of money he reportedly spent during the period
subsequent to his escape from the Missouri State Penitentiary 
and prior to his recent apprehension in London, England.
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AT ST, LOUIS, MISSOURI

The following investigation was conducted on
May 23, 1968, by SA ALBERT J. RUSHING: -

Mrs. MARY L. GROSS, Chief Clerk, St. Louis City Jail 
exhibited a jail record reflecting the following information:

JAMES H. CARPENTER, 2312 Park, age"56, a laborer, 
entered City Jail on June 5, 1967, on charges of carrying a 
concealed weapon and robbery with a dangerous and deadly - 
weapon. On September 29, .1967,- the charge"of carrying a con- ' 
cealed weapon was removed when CARPENTER was found not guilty 
by a jury on that charge. On February 16, 1968, he was sen­
tenced to one year in the City Jail (jail time allowed). He 
was released from City Jail by parole on March 1, 1968. 
CARPENTER indicated his nearest relative was his wife LOIS. '

' Mrs. GROSS advised that’ the.'record referred"to above
clearly reflects, that CARPENTER was continuously incarcerated 
from June 5. 1967. to March 1968. '
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FD-302 (Rev. 1-25-60) DERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATI((|

n^ May 22, 1968

JOSEPH H. MC CORMICK, 2115a Park, Apartment #5,
was interviewed at his place of employment, Bee Line Truck­
ing Company, 718 South 7th Street, St. Louis, Missouri.
MC CORMICK furnished the following information:

'He viewed photographs of subject, JAMES EARL RAY,
as depicted on Federal 'Bureau of Investigation wanted flyer 
442-A dated April 19, 1968. MC CORMICK advised that he did 
not know this man, and had never, heard anyone speak, of him.

MC CORMICK at first denied having lived in the
1800 block of South 11th Street, but later in the interview 
did admit that he resided with one JIM RAMSEY at 1805 South 
11th Street, approximately four months ago.' He advised
that he and RAMSEY resided at this address for approximately 
two months. ■

He stated that RAMSEY worked in a shipyard in
St. Louis in the vicinity of 8300 South Broadway. RAMSEY 
is currently in Waldenberg, Arkansas, where he supposedly 
has relatives. MC CORMICK advised that prior to moving to 
the South 11th Street address he resided at 1910 Rutger.' 
In May of 1967, MC CORMICK believes that he lived at 809 
Allen rear. . • , . . . . ,

MC,'. .'CORMIGK advised that he is. acquainted-with.
JACK GAWRON and ■ that he used to '.work, with GAWRON but -of 
Manpower, Incorporated, St'. .Louis,. .Missouri. ' 'He advised . 
that he- last .saw GAWRON .that"morning".on’ the way to .work. He 
explained that GAWRON-is.-a good friend of his and. he often 
sees him both in the morning, prior to going to work, and ■ . 
in the evening after work. MC CORMICK first denied ever ' ’ ' 
having...heard. GAWRQN mention the name of 'JAMES EARL RAY. Later 
in the -.interview, MC CORMICK advised that he had heard GAWRON 
mention the./name of-RAY. GAWRON'had advised him1, that RAY-was 
his "foster, .son. *’ GAWRON'also told/him that..he, GAWRON, ■ and. 
RAY had ’’poked up’-? a.couple of places... GAWRON did not men­
tion whenor where these holdups occurred, nor .d,id he men­
tion the .amount obtained. . MC CORMICK recalled .'that GAWRON 
advised, him that he had seen subject, RAY, approximately six 
weeks ago. MC CORMICK advised that he was unaware of the 
location or circumstances of this meet.

U>U
On 5/15/68nt St. Louis, Missouri Hie # SL 44-775

SA F. JACK WILLIAMS '
by . SA WILLIAM H. WARFIELD WHW/leh p„t, dictated 5Z1ZZ68

This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It Is the property of the FBI .and is loaned to 
your agency; it and its contents are not to.be distributed outside your agency.
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With respect to associates of GAWRON, MC CORMICK ad­
vised that GAWRON drinks frequently at Peanut’s Bar, 1601 Park, 
St. Louis, Missouri. GAWRON associates with the owner of this 
bar, known only as PEANUTS to MC CORMICK. GAWRON also associates 
with one ORVILLE ’’WHITEY"' KILLION, who resides at 1617a Park.
KILLION often runs poker games at his residence, and GAWRON 
frequents the poker games held there. According to MC CORMICK, 
KILLION is presently at Koch Hospital suffering from tuberculosis 
KILLION reports to the hospital at given intervals for treatment.

Last Monday, two ex-convicts came to GAWRON’s home.
One of these men was a JIMMY (last name unknown) who MC CORMICK 
described as a white male, 65, 5*8”, wearing a felt hat. The 
other man, name unknown, MC CORMICK described as a white male, 
40s, 5’7”, 160 pounds, short and thin with black hair. This 
man is from Louisiana. JIMMY at one time robbed a bar at Grand 
and Chouteau. ,

Last night, May 14, 1968, the same two men returned
to GAWRON’s residence. GAWRON gave the man,frpm Louisiana a 
’’silver plated” .38 caliber, snubnose revolver. The man had 
requested this.revolver from GAWRON on the preceding.Monday , 
night. Although GAWRON did not specifically, state so, 
MC CORMICK believes this.gun was obtained by GAWRON in Madison, 
Illinois . GAWRON has spoken to. him of connections that he has 
at a bar in Madison, Illinois. Something was wrong with'this 
gun because when held up the bullet would fall out of it. 
GAWRON and the man from Louisiana taped the bullets in the gun. 
According to MC CORMICK this man wanted the gun to hold up a 
couple of places. , ,

The man from Louisiana offered him, MC CORMICK, $250
to kill a man.. The man from Louisiana did not mention the 
prospective victim’s name or why he wanted the man killed. 
MC CORMICK advised that he declined this offer and would not 
kill a man for $1,000 much less $250. ,

MC CORMICK said he is convinced that GAWRON saw sub­
ject, RAY, in St. 'Louis. He pointed out that GAWRON has not 
left the St. Louis area to his knowledge, and that he visits 
GAWRON daily... . .. ■ ■

Approximately one week ago, GAWRON told him that RAY 
is presently in Algiers. MC CORMICK understood him to mean

^7
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^DERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATIO^

Date —May, 22,. 1968.

JOSEPH H. MC CORMICK, 2115a Park, Apartment/ #5, 
was re-interviewed at the St. Louis Federal Bureau of 
Investigation office and furnished the following information:

He has known JACK GATOON for approximately 15 
years. He met JACK GAWRON when the tWo of them were work­
ing out of Manpower, Incorporated, St- Louis, Missouri.. 
He has associated with JACK since that time, but has been 
very close to JACK for only the past five years. When he 
first met JACK, JACK was residing in the vicinity of Missies 
ippi and Hickory, St. Louis, Missouri. JACK’S home was 
near Homer TownsI$yfe Neighborhood Bar. He and JACK often 
drank at this bar. MC CORMICK pointed out that TOWSLEY 
is no longer in business and he is presently a bondsman at 
the St. Louis area.

MC CORMICK again viewed photographs of RAY as de­
picted on Federal Bureau of( Investigation wanted flyer number 
442-A. He advised that he does not recall ever having seen 
this man. Although he associated with JACK GAWRON in 1958
and 1959, he does not recall s 
associated with GAWRON.

RAY having lived o?

MC CORMICK was shown a standup photograph of sub-, 
ject, RAY, taken by the St. Louis police Department, at the - 
time of,RAY’s arrest inn1959. MC CORMICK advised that he 
knows this man and recalls having drank with him at TOWNSLEY’e 
at Mississippi and, Hickory. MC CORMICK was thencquite sure 
he knew the man and insisted that.he,had seen^him before, 
however, he advised that he has not seen RAY since GAWRON
moved from the vicinity, of Mississippi and Hickory.

MC CORMICK pointed out that he visits GAWRON at 
GAWRON*s residence practically every evening after Work, 
has never seen the. subject, RAY, at .GAWRON*S place.;

He

, . r Regarding a .conversation between he and GAWRON . “
concerning,fhe subject, MC CORMICK advisedrthat ^proximately 
six weeks ago, , the first part of April, 1968,. GAWRON started 
talking about, RAY. MC CORMICK does not recall GAWRONmeAr ;,^ 
tidning RAY prior to this time. MC CORMICK recalls that... 

-this was approximately the time, that subject-y-RAY’s, photograph

On 5/15/68nf St. Louis, Missouri HI,# SL 44-775

by
SA GEORGE M. PEET .. = z
SA WILLIAM H. WARFIELD__ jyHWZleh____ Date dictated : , ?<^°...

This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI* It is the.property of the F^J .and Is loaned to 
your agency; it and its contents are not to_.be distributed outside your agency. . " '
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was published iri the newspaper. He advised that just he and 
- GawrqN’s housewhen GAWRON mentionedGAWRON were drinking at 

RAY.

MC CORMICK 
he and RAY 
understood 
together, 
occurred.

GAWRON refers 
: that RAY was

to subject, RAY, as JIMMY, and told 
his ’’foster son.” GAWRON stated that

penitentiary

’’took a couple of joints together.” MC CORMICK 
him to mean that they had pulled armed robberies 
GAWRON did not state when and where theseholdups 
GAWRON also stated that RAY had escaped from the

MC CORMICK at first advised that GAWRON stated he 
• had seen RAY approximately six weeks ; before RAY’s picture 
was published in thepaper. Later in,the interview, MG CORMICK 
adised GAWRON had stated he saw RAY six weeks ago,. This would 
have been around the first of April'according to MC CORMICK. 
The discrepancy in the dates on which GAWRON supposedly saw 
RAY were brought to MC ,CORMICK*s attention., He stated he was 
confused as, to exactly when this meet was supposed tp have 
occurred and does not recall if it was six weeks prior to 
RAY’s photograph appearing in the paper, or simply six 'Weeks 
ago. He did state (that the meet supposedly occurred near 
the intersection of 18th and Lafayette, St. Louis, Missouri. 
MC CORMICK pointed out that there is a drug,stpre and a couple 
of bars at this location, and assumes that the meet tpok

' place in a bar. At this point, MC CORMICK advised that ft 
was at this time that GAWRON..'.and RAY Supposedly pulled .the 
armed robberies together. MC CORMICK advised that.this was 
the impression that he gotrfrom JACK. ■ However, he advised , 
that it was equally possible that JACK was referring to 
anied robberies pulled by him, GAWRON, and RAY in 1959 or earlier,

GAWRON;has. advised him that he, GAWRON, has been 
talking,-.to"the FBI about RAY., GAWRON did not state whether . 
or noi he was telling the truth to the FBI. GAWRON stated, he 
was scared and that he did not like,to be bothered by the FBI.

. , ,MC CORMICK advised that he was arrested last e
September for tjie theft of a television set, He is now on 
nine months probation for this offense. He was in tiie city 
jail, cell number 22 with a .JIMMY (last name unknown). JIMMY 
has within.the-jpast, week, began coming. to GAWRON’s home,. 'At/ 
the time that lie arid JIMMY were ip jail, GAWRQN and JAJSES 
RAMSEY were also in jail. MC CORMICK was in jail approximately

2025 RELEASE UNDER E.O. 14176



with 
ment 
also

3

SL 44-775

two months, GAWRON was released bdbre him, and JIMMY was re­
leased only recently. While in Jail, he overheard no conver­
sation between JIMMY and GAWRON regarding RAY. He advised 
at that time GAWRON and RAMSEY were in jail for the burglary 
of Art’s Tavern, Soulard and South 11th Streets.

He recalls that sometime ag;b, the exact date un­
known to him, RAMSEY, GAWRON and someone else went to Arkansas 
to rob a variety store. They had previously cased this store. 
MC CORMICK recalled that they did not rob this store as they 
had planned for some reason unknown to him.

Regarding the financial status of GAWRON, MC CORMICK 
advised that GAWRON generally has a couple of hundred dollars 

him all the time. He stated that GAWRON receives a Govern- 
check and plays cards frequently. He advised that GAWRON 
has an account at Manufacturer’s Bank on.South Broadway.

' MC .CORMICK advised that GAWRON has no telephone, 
but frequently goes out to make telephone calls at a pay phone 
located in front of a Catholic church at 12th and Lafayette, 
St. Louis. > ' , •

It is his opinion that GAWRON would not tell the FBI 
where RAY is,, even if..he knew. He. stated that GAWRON <is ’’.a 
little, nuts.” He, stated he believes this because of the fact 
that GAWRON keeps approximately fifteen cats in his home and 
one dog. GAWRON kisses the cats and refers to them as ’’baby.” 
He stated that GAWRON.sleeps with all the cats and his. dog.

, MC CORMICK advised thaj he lived next door to JACK 
at 1805 South 11th Street downstairs with JIM RAMSEY for 
approximately two months. He recalls that he lived there at 
the time JACK' was arrested in June, 1967. He did not see 
the subject, RAY, in the vicinity of JACK’S home at that time.

MC CORMICK described RAMSEY as> a ’’loud mouth, who 
would come in bn.anybody." He stated, that.he is sure that 
RAMSEY,/Would'tell the FBI if he-.had any knowledge of RAY. 
MC CORMICK pointed out, that he would certainly.tell the FBI 
if he knew, where RAY was at present. He pointed out that he 
will immediately contact the FBI should any information concern­
ing RAY become known to him.
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Regarding any trips that GAWRON may have taken re­
cently, MC CORMICK advised that he knows of no trips with the 
exception of the preceding Monday and Tuesday nights when JACK 
did not come home until two or three a.m. He knows that JACK 
came home this late, only because JACK told him so. He ad­
vised that this is not like JACK and he assumes that JACK 
may have gone to Madison, Illinois, on these nights to pick up 
a pistol for JIMMY (last name unknown) and a man from Louisi­
ana, who have recently been frequenting JACK’S residence.

MC CORMICK advised that JACK has never mentioned to 
him anyone ever having given him $250 or any bank loot.

MC CORMICK advised that it was not possible for RAY 
to have stayed with JACK when he, MC CORMICK, resided at 1805 
South 11th Street. He pointed out that at that time he and 
JACK were so closely associated that he would have surely seen 
RAY had he been in the area.' . ' ; . ;

The following description of MC CORMICK was obtained 
through observation and interview:

Name? T,v - 
Address ' .
Telephone''' < q'. 
Date of Birth
Place of Birth
Height 
Weight 
Hair
Eyes ,

Employed

Health

Characteristics .

JOSEPH M.'MC CORMICK 
2115a Park, Apartment 5

Sioux City, Iowa
• 5’9.?'; ■
170, pounds . • .
Black-gray . . r. - 
Hazdl, wears glasses, 
left, eye noticeably crossed 
Bee Line, Trucking/Company, 
incorporated, 718 South 
7th Street, as mechanic’s, 
helper.,.' . 'J 
Suffered nervous breakdown, 
1955, spent one month in 
Malcolm Bliss Hospital, 
St., Louis ,
Throughout thb interview 
it was noticed that MC CORMICK 
is very nervous, easily be­
comes confused, and often 
contradicts himself.
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EE: JOSEPH B. MC CORMICK

The following investigation was conducted by SA 
WILLIAM H. WARFIELD^ on May 16, 1068: ■

AT STO LOUIS, MISSOURI

Miss SHERIDA MC QUEEN, Probation Officer, City of 
St., Louis, Missouri, advised that THOMAS MANGOGNA is no' 
longer employed as a probation officer. MANGOGNA left approx­
imately one month ago and is presently employed at Magdella 
House, which is a halfway house for girls located near 
Missouri and Whitmore in St.- Louis,. Missouri. M'iss'MC QUEEN 
advised that JOSEPH H. MC CORMICK is a probationer currently 
assigned to her. She pointed out that since she has had 
MC CORMICK for only one month, she has never spoken with him. 
She made available the probation file of MC CORMICK which 
reflects the following information: ' , ,

MC CORMICK was convicted .October 24, 1967 Si of ' 
stealing from a dwelling. He was.sentenced to nine months 
in the Missouri Medium Security Institution but was granted 
one year probation... .The file indicates that ■ MC CORMICK. and 
one. JOHN VINCE •BOROWSKI entered the home of MARY CHROMOGO, 
1809a, Alien, .St. Louis, -Missouri, and stole a-, television 
valued at-$25 on..August 17,. 1967. -.. MC--CORMICK ‘admitted his ■ 
implication,'in .this theft but stated that it was actually 
BOROWSKI who carried the television from the house and subse­
quently sold it. ■ ' , , , ' .

The file, reflects that on October 26, 1967, MC 
CORMICK was residing at 1805 South 11th Street", with one 
JIM RAMSEY. On December 6, 1967, MC CORMICK was residing 
at 2109a Menard with his mother, . .THERESA ,MC CORMICK.

On March 15,<1968, through April 29,1968, MC.-CORMICK’s 
address was again listed as 1805 South 11th Street. ,MC.CORMICK 
has a grade school education, having terminated his schooling 
at St. Louis, Missouri, in 1934. MC CORMICK is syphilitic and 
has experienced deterioration of his condition in recent years. 
He is very nervous, drinks, and has a problem holding jobs. 
The file notes that MC CORMICK probably will not get into any 
more trouble, but that he will not function adequately either.

According to MCCABE, he drinks heavily and because 
of this drinking he and his wife, ROSE T. WALDRON, 2845a
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Lafayette or 3214a South Grand are separated

In 1955 MC CORMICK was admitted to.Malcolm Bliss 
Hospital where he stayed for one month suffering from a 
nervous breakdown. A check of the hospital records by the 
probation officer indicates that MC CORMICK has syphilis 
which has affected his brain. His condition is chronic
brain syndrome due to Meningoncephalitic Lues, chronic in­
flamation of the brain and brain membrane due
This condition produces excessive nervousness 
activity. .

to syphilis, 
ind motor

MC CORMICK has an IQ of 72 which is in the men
tally defective range. MC CORMICK has three prior misde­
meanorarrests, one in 1941 for vagrancy and two in 1962 and 
1963 for stealing over $50. The file indicates MC CORMICK 
had a brother, VICTOR V, MC CORMICK, who was shot approximately 
three years ago. The file indicates that VICTOR apparently 
associated with an unsavory element.
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NE IGHBORHOOD - ^-Y-IC#ITY' ' 
1800 South lltli Street 
St« Louis,’Missouri

On 
conducted in

May 15, 1968, a neighborhood investigation was 
the vicinity of 1807 South 11th Street, by SA

WILLIAM H. WARFIELD and SA F. JACK WILLIAMS. The following 
persons were contacted and interviewed and viewed photographs 
of JAMES EARL RAY as depicted on wanted flyer 442-A dated 
April 19, 1968, and their comments are as indicated:

ROSALIE SMITH, 1813a South 11th Street, advised 
she has resided in this address since 1962. She has never 
seen subject, RAY. She advised that she is acquainted with 
a JACK (last name unknown), who resides 1807 South 11th 
Street. She stated JACK lives at thisaddress alone most 
of the time. She has never seen subject, RAY, at JACK’S 
house. ,

MARY (last name unknown) who resides at 1805 South 
11th Street, rear, (this is a house separate and apart from 
the house at 1805-1807 South 11th Street), often stays with 
JACK (last name unknown). It was nqted, that, an elderly male 
and female were, at that time seated on .the rear porch a,tT < ; 
iSO’Jh South 11th Street.. She. pointed to, these two..individuals 
as the persons known to her as JACK and MARY.f SMITH occupies 
both apartments, upstairs at 1813 South 11th. It should be. 
noted that the two apartments located downstairs in this 
same building, bear the address 1815, and 1815a South 11th,

. According to LINDA SMITH, 1813a South 11th Street, 
daughter to ROSALIE SMITH, one FRED POWERS resides at 1815a 
South 11th. ■

FRED also maintains a residence somewhere in the 
"country” and comes to St. Louis only the first part of each 
month to pick up his check. , i । , ,

LINDA SMITH,advised that a MARY (last name unknown) 
resides at 1815 South 11th, The mailbox for this address 
indicates the: resident is one MURIEL JORDAN^ r

LINDA SMITH pointed out that the residence at 1809 
South. 11th is presently vacant., She advised that this resi­
dence was previously occupied,by a Mexican lady , who now 
resides at an unknown, address with her son. LINDA SMITH 
pointed out that a second Mexican woman formerly resided at 
1805 South 11th. This lady died recently.
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LINDA SMITH stated that residents of the neighbor­
hood frequent Art’s Bar which is open only on Sunday’s at 
the corner of 11th and Soulard and Ecidie Sang’s Bar bn the 
corner of 12th and Soulard. .LINDA SMITH advised that she 
will immediately notify the FBI should she receive any in­
formation concerning RAY. It was noted that tlie apartment 
house at 1809 South 11th and the apartment house at 1809 
rear South 11th were both vacant.

EDDIE SANG, 1800 South 12th Street, owner of
Eddie Sang’s Tavern at the same address advised that the 
photograph of RAY looks familial? and he believes he has seen 
this man before. SANG pointed out that he first noted the 
familiarity of RAY’s face when he saw RAY’s photograph 
in the newspaper. He stated that he associated the face 
with a customer at his tavern but cannot associate the name 
with the face. He advised that several ex-convicts of the 
neighboring area used to frequent his tavern. He recalled 
one as a JACK (last name unknown) white, male, 45 believed to 
be . from, Arkansas. He advised that this JACK was, suspected of 
a shooting in the neighborhood approximately six to eight 
wnihs ago and that he( was also involved in the . burglary of 
Art’s Tavern, 11th and Soulard. He barred JACK (last name 
unknown) from his place of business and doesnot know where 
he could be located at present.

MILDRED LAKAS, 1118 Soulard, could furnish no 
information regarding the subject. . , ....... , P

. ALBERT JOBE, 1116 Soulard has resided at .this , 
address since July, 1967. Prior to that time he resided at , 
1821a South 11th. He does not recall ever having seen the 
subject in the neighborhood and pointed out that he frequently 
visits nearby taverns. (

■ ,Mr. and Mrs. RICHARD, GRAYBILL, 1107a Soulard, could
furnish nd information concerning the subject. They have 
resided at this address for approximately four years.

. CHRISTINE.GREENWAY, 1107 Soulard, has resided at 
this address approximately two years. She could furnish no 
information concerning the subject., , - T

; SHIRLEY HURST, 1107Soulard,advised that the center
photograph of the subject looks familiar, but she cannot 
associate the face with a name or place. Mrs. HURST pointed
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out she operated a grocery at 1110 Soulard for a few months 
during 1965.

Mrs. EDWIN BLASE, 1817 South 11th Street, could
furnish no information

Mrs. WILLIAM 
furnish no information 
that she is new in the

concerning subject.

M. DUDA, 1819 South 11th Street, could 
concerning the subject but pointed out 
neighborhood.

IDA BIELLER 1821 South 11th Street, stated that
she has resided in this neighborhood 21 years but could fur­
nished no information, concerning the subject.

MELZO COURTWAY, 1114 Soulard, could furnish no 
information concerning the subject.

DALLAS, FRILLMAN was interviewed at Sang’s Tavern, 
1800 Sduth 12th Street, and could furnish no information 
concerning subject. \ i '

EMERY HARRISON," 1112 Soulard and MARGARET YZBROCK, 
1114 Soulard could furnish no.information concerning subject.

■ , WILLIE,MANNING was interviewed at V.P. Drug Store 
1731 South 11th Street. He advibed that he has been inter- 
viwed by agents in the past and knows nothing.
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The following investigation was conducted by SA CLETIS 
B. BIDEWELL on May 29, 1968:

ARTHUR FORLOW, Missouri State Probation and Parole Officer, 
1500 South Big Bend, advised that RUSSELL P. BRANNEN, FBI 279 653 6, 
Missouri State Penitentiary (MSP)#65816J, is presently on parole 
under supervision by that office. He advised that on April .1, 1952, 
BRANNEN received a 25 year sentence under the Habitual Criminal Act 
and that his parole supervision is scheduled to terminate bn September 
10, 1968O^ According to FORLOW, BRANNEN presently resides at 1633 
Dolman, St. Louis, and is employed at the Modern Jacket Company.

\ 7^
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Date ' ’ 6/5/68 1

RUSSELL PERRY BRANNEN was interviewed-at. his'place'of ' '
residence 1633 Dolman. He is employed at the Modern Jaqket Company, ■ 
1000 Washington Avenue. - BROMEN was" released from'-the'Missouri ■ ■ . - ■ 
State Penitentiary September 10, 1964. . He .had beeW/sehtenced to ■ . - ■ 
this institution on April 1^.19527 from' Bethany, '.Missouri,-• in conn 
nection with an auto theft at which, time he .received; a-<25-.year sentence.

' under, the Habitual Criminal Act . . .. ' - < -.'/.';.//;-■??::■,.,"' ' ’ .

’ BRANNEN stated during his-last sevei<: years .at the ..Missouri' //’ 
State Penitentiary, he worked under the immediate ■.supervision' of .. ' ■ z'- 
Major. POIRY (phonetic), -Deputy Warden, and ws-l'b 'charge'.'qf \transfers,.^ 
cell changes-'and classification’©f prisoners'v?:;iln'this-.capacity^ ■
felt that he undoubtedly came in contact with'-subject 4MES'^^ 
but he had no specific .recollection of' subjedtis'^ ^tei'/’//''
viewing subject’s photograph, he stated .’that.’the/fac/e/-looked'fam^ 
but he still had no specific recollection .of subject• \RAY. < -He denied ; /.’? : 
having any contact with Subject RAY- subsequent: tq" 'RAY’S- escape '.'from’;;./' 
the Missouri State Penitentiary.' He mentioned--he1're'eaiied-'discussing,' 
subject RAY with one JOHNNY VELANTI after VSi^F'.i^Qiight'-'up-t 
subject and-asked him if -he, BRANNEN, ■ had.’ahy'-rscoiiect^^^ 
RAY in the\Missouri State Penitentiary and.'.lf^lieyvBR^^^

■, any contaet\between VELANTI and RAY while ..fcn./iiie.^^

BRANNEN advised when questioned concerning-^ 
that he knew CARPENTER and.had seen him occasionally'', in. .the' recent • '/ 
.past. He did not recall having discussed subject RAY-.'on any occasion , 
with CARPENTER and stated CARPENTER' was entering the St.- Louis City " 
Hospital in th® near future for an eye Operation. ’ :-It was his under- . 
standing that arrangements had been made' for CARPMTER to enter-'the/..

■ hospital by a southside St. - Louis politician known.ioniy .to. him as - .
“LEISURE” (phonetic). ' . ' /./:■;. :// ■ ' .

at, .GallatinBRANNEN advised that he was born
Missouri, and that he is presently on parol® trom -Ehe Missouri State • .....
Penitentiary and that'his parole is up in September 6(1968. He' ' ■
promised to be alert for anyone with whom he came in "'contact for-any ... 
information which might be off value in trying1 to' ascertain the present '-, 
whereabouts of subject RAY or any' kno^n associates -,of RAY who might . •. 
be in a position to furnish such information.

On -5/31/68 „♦ St.■ Louis, Missouri 44-775 :

, -SA CLETIS B. BIDEWELL;hcv 'by ----------------------------_:------------------ --------------------- _Date dictated ^3/^

This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI* It is the property of. the:FBI .and is loaned to 
your agency;1 it and. its contents,are not to.be distributed o.utside your agency. ............. '■ - , . . . • , .■
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■ . 'BRANNEN advised upon questioning that he had not heard 
any discussion concerning the method of subject RAY’s escape as 
to whether or not he left in a bread truck or walked'out of the ' - 
prison with a group of visitorso. . ■ . ■ , '

^1 . '

2025 RELEASE UNDER E.O. 14176



1
SL: . - 44-775
HRD: wma

NEIGHBORHOOD - MISSISSIPPI AVENUE '

. The following' was conducted by SAs PATRICK We BRADLEY’and
ROBERTA, HESS’on June 3, 1968:

' . 'JOHN PAUL VELANTI indicated an’un-named convict allegedly 
told him he had observed subject.in the 1800 block,of Mississippi '
Avenue,
subject’s 
1967.

St, Louis, Missouri,'approximately two weeks following 
escape from the Missouri State Penitentiary,.. April 23

Avenue in
Observation disclosed,.there is no 1800.block of Mississippi 
St, Louis, Missouri. ’ ” At the point where’ -Mi's sow!

intersected by Geyer Avenue,, the numbers jump from

' Photographs of subject were’ displayed to 
individuals on Mississippi and Geyer.Avenues,’with

Mississippi is 
17.79 to 1915.

the following 
the result that

nome of.them were able to recall'having.observed anyone of subject’s 
appearance in the area or ever having' been 'acquainted'with anyone’ 
of subject’s name or 'aliases';/- .

MISSISSIPPI AVENUE (SA BRADLEY)

mo HERMAN BUCfflLL '
1722
1726

JOHN Jo O’BRIEN
JAMES LACEY .

1721
1725

1730 OMA BANKS ’
1779 WIBBS AUTO REPAIR 

(JAMES' WIBBS - OWNER) 
Geyer Avenue Intersects

■ 1918a SHERMAN TOLLIVER ' .
• Allen Avenue Intersects

GEYER AVENUE (SA HESS).

1916 EVERETT BOYER
1919 HENRY WILLARD

1752
1915

1918

1918
1920

CARRIE B. DEWEY ■ ■ 
TILLIE B. FULTON ' ' 
BEULAH PIERCE
OPAL CONNOR . ■ . - 
BILLS BARBER SHOP - . 
JOSEPH . BURNS --' Barber 
LOLA M. COFFMAN

ANNA NAGY 
GUY KIRK
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' 1924

• 1926

1928

MAY’S CONFECTIONERY
EVERETT W., KOLB
J AND S USED FURNITURE
EDNA DAVIS ■ •
EISELL’s BAR -
JOSEPH EISELL

' 1925

1927

(Mississippi Avenue intersects)'

. 20®Geyer Food Shop 
WILLIAM KOENER

20'05

2006

2009
2013
2015
2017
2020

MAX AND GENE’S TAVERN •
MAX LABIAN
ELIZABETH MERSEAL
VIRGIL SIMMONS '
GRACE PAYNE
FRANKLIN ANDERSON .
ELIA SAMMIE. .

2007

2010
2014
2016
2018

CARROLL Eo BATTEN / .

MW.

JESSE

ALLAN

FISH

RHYNE

D, EARL

MARY WILSON
LUKE FIELDS
JOSEPH OPERSCHALL
WILLIAM F. P0LITTE
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Pate May 22, 1968

OPAL HIGHLY, 1630 South 18th Street, was inter­
viewed at her residence and furnished the following informa­
tion:

She formerly was the operator of Opal’s Bar, 1805
Lafayette. She advised that she ran Opal’s Bar at this lo­
cation from 1947 until 1961. From September, 1939, until 
1945 she operated a bar, also known as Opal’s Bar, at a dif­
ferent location near 18th and Lafayette, St. Louis, Missouri

She viewed photographs of subject, JAMES EARL RAY,
as depicted on Federal Bureau of Investigation wanted flyer 
number 442-A dated April 19, 1968. She advised that the two 
photographs appearing on the left side of the wanted flyer 
appear to be familiar but that she cannot associate the face 
with a name or place. She advised that she has read accounts 
of the MARTIN LUTHER KING slaying in the newspaper and ad­
vised that this picture may appear familiar to her inas­
much as she has previously seen it -in the newspaper . .

HIGHLY pointed out that she does not recall the
names of patrons frequently visiting her bar. She did know 
some of her patrons by their first names. The name JAMES 
RAY mea,ns nothing to her. , . r , , — - ,

She is acquainted with a JACK (last name unknown)
who limps, and has been in and out-of the penitentiary aJ4 
of his life. She advised that JACK (last name unknown). ■ 
would now be approximately 70 years old. ( He used to live 
around Kennett Place, or another nearby street. She; advised 
that she did not recall this.man qntil recently when the man 
spoke with an asspcia^te of her, TED RICHARDSON, who also 
works for her. This man advised that h|s name was JACK and 
told RICHARDSON to ask HIGHLY if she remembered him. HIGHLY 
pointe,d,out that she did hot remember him at that time. 
Later/J^CK (last name unknown) again contacted RICHARDSON 
and told RICHARDSON to,-tell HIGHLY that he was the man who 
used to come in her place with a big woman and a boy who 
liked to dance. .Upon receipt of this information, HIGHLY - 
recalled JACK as a frequent patron at, Opal’s Bar . He always 
came in with a big Woman who drank beer. This was approximately 
fifteen years ago. The woman who accompanied JACK had a boy

5/15/68 nt St . Louis, Missouri pj|e ^ SL 44-775

SA F. JACK.WILLIAMS '
SA WILLIAM H, WARFIELD WHW/leh nM. dictated 5/17/68

This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It is the property of the FBI .and Is loaned to 
your agency; it and its contents are not to.be distributed outside your agency. ■ • .
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about fifteen years old. The boy liked to dance and often 
danced at the bar.

HIGHLY does not believe that the dancing boy was
wouldShe noted that the dancersubject, JAMES EARL RAY.

only be about 30 years of age at this time.

HIGHLY advised that she was always at the bar during 
the cus-its hours of operation and was well acquainted with 

tomers. She advised that a LISTER GUIBOR, presently employed
at National Fixture, 7000 South Broadway, used to tend bar 
for her. She advised that MARIE MC MURTY, 1634 South 18th 
Street, was employed by her in Opal’s Bar as a waitress.

, HIGHLY advised that should she gain any information 
concerning JAMES EARL RAY, she would immediately contact the 
■FBI. ■ ■ , ' .
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Missouri, 
following

Bderal bureau of investigatk®

1 Date May 22, 1968

MARIE MC MURTY, 1634 South 18th Street, St. Louis, 
was interviewed at her residence and furnished the 
information:

She was employed as a waitress at Ophl’s Bar, 
1805 Lafayette, St.,Louis, Missourij in 1958, dr 1959.

She viewed photographs of subject, JAMES EARL RAY 
as depicted on Federal. Bureau of Investigation wanted flyer 
number 442—A elated April 19, 1968. She advised that she 
does not recall ever having seen RAY at Opal’s Bar and that 
the name, JAMES EARL RAY, had no significance to her prior 
to the recent publicity concerning him.

MC MURTY advised she would immediately advise the 
FBI should she gain any information concerning RAY.

On 5/15/68at St. Louis^ Mteouri . File # S3L 44-775

SA FJACK WILLIAMS . ■ ■ • ' • .
by Ma WILLIAM H, WARFIELD WHW/leh nwU dictated 5/17/68 ■

This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of. the FBI* It Is the property of the FBI' .and Is loaned to, 
your agency; It and Its contents are not to_be distributed outside your agency. •• J . - . . '
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The following investigation was conducted by 
, SA GEORGE M.. PEET.1 , '

On May 15, 1968, RICHARD MlSSAVAGE, Computer Section, 
St. Louis Police Department, advised that Field Interrogation 
Reports (FIR’s - forms filled out regarding suspicious persons
stopped and questioned but not arrested or booked) had been 
searched for a record of subject RAY under his name and ‘ 
aliases with negative results. These reports cover the 
November, 1967,to date for the entire city and were all

known 
period 
that

are available.

On May 17, 1968, all original FIR’s for 1967 
were available at Third District, St. Louis Police Department 
which covers the area where subject RAY is known to have 
frequented, were also searched with negative results.

which

■■ In addition, the-FIR’s were searched through computer 
for a record of JAMES LOMA OWENS, FBI number 139 770 7, on 
May 15, 1968, in an effort to ascertain his whereabouts for 
interview.

2025 RELEASE UNDER E.O. 14176
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/ UNIDENTIFIED DEATHS \

Sergeant BUFORD MC GAHAN, Fingerprint Section, St. Louis, 
Missouri, Police Department, and MRS. HELEN TAYLOR, City Coroner, < 
St. Louis, Missouri, advised SA JAMES T. DEARBORN on May 10, 1968, 
the Fingerprint Section of the St. Louis Police Department checks all, 
unidentified cadavers in the City of St. Louis, Missouri, and 
obtains their fingerprints if the condition of the body will allow. 
These prints are then forwarded to the FBI IDENTIFICATION DIVISION. 
No unidentified white male cadavers have been found in the City of 
St. Louis, Missouri, since April 4. 1968.

On the same date Detective JOHN LARRISON, St. Louis County) 
Missouri, Police Department advised SA DEARBORN the same procedure 
is followed by his Department in St*  Louis County, Missouri, and th^t 
no unidentified'white male cadavers, had been found since April 4, •"•

• ; Sergeant PAUL NAUMANN, Missouri State. Highway patrol,
Troop 0, Kirkwood, Missouri, advised SA DEARBORN, on the same date, 
that the Patrol performs a similar service for coroners and 
Police Departments in the rural areas of Missouri. .

1968.,, ■ ■ : . : : . . ■ ’ ‘
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SALVATION ARMY AND OTHER CHARITABLE
-.TYPE MISSION’PROJECT. / .

In view of subject’s habit of staying in flophouses and 
lower class rooming houses, the following charitable type missions were 
personally contacted, on the dates indicated, and furnished the 
Identification Order concerning subject. Subject was unknown to persons 
contacted; however, they indicated they would immediately contact this
office in the event they observed him or received any 
concerning him:-.- ; ’ ■ • -

information

ST. LOUIS. MISSOURI:

NAME DATE AGENT

SALVATION ARMY ■ ’ ’ '’
MEN’S SOCIAL CENTER, 3949 Forest Park, 5-24-68 

. JOHN MC ALLISTER - Personnel Director .•

DIVISIONAL-HEADQUARTERS, 2827 Clark
MILDRED MAYBERRY - Director. / ■ .

TOWER GROVE CITADEL,. 1324 Tower Grove 
Captain E. C. ROLLIN - Director -

TEMPLE,3110 Iowa • ’ ... ' '
Captain- LEE.SMITH - Director

EUCLID 
FRIEDA

HARBOR 
HAROLD

AVENUE, 2618 North Euclid
HARPER - Secretary . / ■

LIGHT, 915 Market ‘■ 
RICHARDS - Personnel Director

CORPS AND YOUTH CENTER, 416 S. Main 
(St. Charles, Missouri), 'Captain 
ROBERT BUTTREY - Director ' '

EMPLOYMENT SERVICE, .915’Market
HAROLD RICHARDS. - Personnel Director

JOSEPH A DUBYAK

It

ft

n

IV

5-27-68 ALAN E. MCELWAIN

»t
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NAME DATE AGENT

: LAFAYETTE PARK, 1710 Carroll 5-27-68 A1EN E. MCELWAIN

Captain JACK VAUGHN - Director

7701 Rawnels (Maplewood, Missouri) ” ” ”
Captain DONALD LOVEJOY - Director

NORTHSIDE, 1323 Sullivan . ” ” ”
CaptainDANIEL UPTEGROVE - Director

SOUTHSIDE, 801 Allen 5-24-68 JOHN 0. TRETHWAY
' THOMS ONKLE - Office Employee.. / ■

WELLSTON, 6203 Cote Brilliante ” ” "
■ Captain-J.' A. MILLER ■

BEREA MISSION, INC.," 3536 Russell ' - ' ’ ' ■ ” ■ ' ’’ / ' ” .

CHARLES RUSSELL - Business Manager ■. ' ■ ■ .

LUTHERAN MISSION ASSOCIATION, 1323 Herbert/ ” ” ' ”
DOROTHY BARTON - Secretary - , ■ . ' ' ;

OPEN DOOR MISSIONARY FELLOWSHIP, 4045 Ashland ” . . ... .... ' ” '- ' A
H.'H. PETERS, Secretary .. / ' - ■ , A

DISMAS HOUSE, 903 Cole - 5-27-68 LAWRENCE B.CURTIN
VIRGINIA BRADSHAW.'- Secretary . / ' , ’ • ' '

FATHER DEMPSEY CHARITIES, 3427 Washington . ”, ,
ELMER WILLIAM -’Manager . ' ■ . . , : '

ST. LOUIS RESCUE’-MISS ION, 4023 Olive : - ' ” n
JAMES CARTER - Seaton '

SUNSHINE MISSION,'614-Franklin • /; •
WILLIAM L. BUSCHART - Superintendent:-;. , ' . ... ■

SHINING: LIGHT TABERNACLE ,'1428 Monr oe -. : ; . J ■ '
Reverend JESSE' GREEN - Pastor. ’ . - ' - ,

9/
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HUMAN SERVICE CENTER, 905 North 5th 
Poplar Bluff, Missouri ' 
WILLIAM BRIGDEN - Manager .

DATE AGENT

5-28-68 WILLIAM R.BURTON .

No other charitable type missions which furnish lodging 
to indigents were found within the territory covered by the 
Sto Louis Division. ' ■
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®DERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATld^

Date 6-12-68

DONALD GARFIELD COX, residing at the northeast corner 
of Case and Thelma, Berkeley, Missouri, was interviewed at 
his place of employment, Derby Service Station, 8970 Natural
Bridge, Berkeley, Missouri, and furnished 
formation: . , -

the following in

He was confined to the Missouri 
from September, i960, to September, 1963, 
tion for armed robbery in the city of St.

State Penitentiary 
after his convic- 
Louis, Missouri.

He viewed a photograph of JAMES EARL RAY as depicted 
on FBI Wanted Flyer #442-A dated April 19, 1968. He advised 
that he recognized the center photograph on this wanted flyer 
as a JAMES RAY with whom he was acquainted in the,,penitentiary. . 
He advised that he knew RAY, only slightly and described,RAY 
as a loner who seldom associated with, the other inmates, 
He stated that RAY was not well.liked in the penitentiary, 
and that he came to the penitentiary with the attitude t|iat f 
he was a "big shot" and was going to run things. He advised 
that RAY was not a gambler to his knowledge nor did RAY collect 
gambling debts for anyone else. -

While in the penitentiary he, COX, associated with 
BOB BURNS, BOB DOUGLAS, CLYDE CASEY, and GLENCHERNICK. He 
advised that he is acquainted with a JAMES BROWN from the? , - 
city of St. Louis. He advised he, is unaware bfp^^ pre­
sent residence but that BRQWN would be apprbximateiy-33 years 
of age at the present. He is unaware of whether or nq^WWN 

■ was close to JAMES RAY. He adyised that. BROWNchad- "so many 
stories" that he tried to stay away from"BROWN^ He advised 
that BROWN was a "liar" and always had some stories,to, tell.

He is not acquainted with a (first name unknowp) 
ALLEN who was an inmate at the Missouri State Penitentiary. 
He advised that he may recognize a photograph of ALLEN but 
that he knew many of the inmates only by their faces father 
than their names. . u ,

He advised that he is acquainted, .with a ’’SLICK”
STEDHAM doing life at the Missouri State Penitentiary from 
Kansas City, COX also described STIDHAM as a liar.

n 6-5-68On _____ _____ at Berkeley, Missouri - Pile # SL 44-775

SA WILLIAM H. WARFIELD
SA MARVIN R. DORAN WHW:amb . ■ ., ,

by __________?_______ ___________________ ——- Date di ctqted
6-7-68

.This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI* It Is the property of the FBI and is loaned to 
your agency; It and Its contents are hot to.be distributed outside your'agency. , . . ' , ;
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He was aware of no organization at the Missouri 
State Penitentiary that acted as enforcers or who in anyway 
"ran" the penitentiary. He advised that if thorp was any 
single organization or man, who runs, the Missouri, State Peni­
tentiary that man would be BOB BURNS whom he described, ps^ t 
a small man presently doing 75 years from St. Louis for armed 
robbery. BURNS’ brother is supposedly a detective lieutenant 
in the St. Louis Police Department.

. With respect to known gamblers at the Missouri State
Penitentiary he advised that JOHNNIE JOHNSON from Kansas City 
and JACK KALENKA (phonetic) also from Kansas Ctty were known 
gamblers who have now both been released from the penitentiary. 
He advised that CLYDE CASEY,! GLEN CHERNICK, and7 "SLICK” STEDHAM
were also gamblers. 
JOHNNIE VELANTI.

He advised 
when he was residing

He advised he is unacquainted with a

that JAMES EARL RAY resided in B Hall 
in C Hall at the penitentiary.

COX pointed out that he could furnish no informa­
tion concerning RAY or the associates of RAY, however, he 
advised that should any information concerning।RAY. become v 
known to him he will immediately contact thejFBI. ,-COX ppinted 
out that he has "gone straight" since leaving the penitentiary, 
has a good job, and wants to stay on the right side of the 
law.

2025 RELEASE UNDER E.O. 14176
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RE: PRISON ASSOCIATE 
CARL BENTON DRAKE

On June 5, 1968, CARL BENTON DRAKE was re-interviewed
by SA WALTER C.JOHNSON and said he had.heard nothing regard­
ing JAMES EARL RAY. He again expressed a willirigpess .to co­
operate in the event he learpe'b’,any^hing\df'" value'.. . DRAKE 
said he had been extremely busy doing tpckpoihting work this 
spring and did not come in contact with any of his former 
prison associates.

^ 6
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MMES COOPER GREEN, .JR.'

FELLOWPRT.SONERS

On May 16, 1968, JAMES COOPER GREEN, JR., 942 Grand, 
Caruthersville, Missouri, was connoted at the Town and Country 
Supply Company, Highway 84 west, by SA WILLIAM R. BURTON.

GREEN-advised.that he/was sentenced to .the Missouri 
State Penitentiary'at Jefferson/City, Missouri, andarrived there ' 
oh November 29, 1965. ‘ He stayed approximately.four-weeks and was ■ 
transferred to Algoa until May3j 1966, at which time he went back 
to Jefferson City for a period of two weeks. He was then transferred 
to the Moberly, Missouri, Farm. During his stay at Moberly he went 
back to Jefferson City to the hospital twide^^nce for a one month 
period in Augx^; of 1966 and then for a week in July of 1967... ' He was 
released from'Moberly on'August 29, 1967,. and returned to Caruthersville 
As he recalled there were two individuals named RAY’at Moberly at 
the time he was there, one who was tall and thin who escaped but'’ ' 
was recaptured the same night, the other he heard had ©scaped-and 
had not been recaptured.' He did not know either off these'RAYS on 
a personal basis and is not positive that either of them is identical 
with the Identification Order photograph off JAMES EARL RAY»|,Be ' 
further-advised that sometime in 1966 while he.was at Moberg he 
and several other prisoners were caught;gambling> and as a-result 
of this he attempted'to make a deal'with prison authorities, that' ■ 
he would turn over to them a shipment of amphetamine powder that . 
was supposed to be coming into the prisoners. Instead of giving 
them the real amphetamine powder, he gave them a greenish colored.
food seasoning. They discovered the switch and as a result he ■
was taken into prison court, given ten days in the hole and a .
20 days loss off merit time. To the best-'off his recollection and 
knowledge, he never came into contact with JAMES EARL RAY in regard 
to this amphetamine. ■ .

2025 RELEASE UNDER E.O. 14176
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FELLOW PRISONER:■ DAVID DON MC FARLIN

Mrs. JUDITH MC FARLIN of St. Louis indicated that 
DAVID DON MC FARLIN was last known to be residing with his 
mother, Mrs. 0cL. DAVIS, General Delivery, Advance, Missouri.

On May 23, 1968, Mrs. Oo L. DAVIS, Advance, advised 
that her son, DAVID DON MC FARLIN, had recently moved to Malden 
Missouri, and was going to school at the Office of Economic r 
Opportunity, Manpower Development Training School at Sikeston, 
Missouri. . ’ a 7 • . • .

Efforts on that same date to c&tact MC FARLIN at '
Malden, Missouri, were negative, and he was thereafter 
at Sikeston, Missouri.

interviewed

MC FARLIN, who gave his residence address as 
Beckwith, Malden, advised that he was sentenced' to the

703 South 
Missouri

State.Penitentiary in May, 1966, spent three weeks in Jefferson 
City, and was then sent to the Number Two Farm for approximately 
seven months, at which time he was transferred to the Church 
Farm and was subsequently paroled in April, 1967? He viewed 
a photograph of JAMES EARL RAY, stated the photograph did not
look familiar to him, cannot recall ever having met 
while he was in the penitentiary, and could furnish 
information of ^value............ , , A---

the individual 
no other

The foregoing was conducted by SA WILLIAM R. BURTON
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RAY - FELLOW INMATES

Mrs. -HAZEL MENARD, 2636 St. 'Vincent, was contacted at ■ ,
her residence. After Special Agents ROBERT A. HESS and PATRICK W. 
BRADLEY identified themselves, She stated ’’What do you want now? 
I’m in'a hurry because I’m preparing to go to work.” It was pointed : 
out to Mrs. MENARD that we-desired to get in contact with two . 
sons who were former inmates at Missouri State Penitentiary. . She 
stated that she has three Sons and one of them is currently in the 
Federal penitentiary. She pointed out that the other two sons 
reside somewhere in"St. Louis, exact whereabouts unknown and ■ ■
employment unknown, but she is of the. opinion that she will see- 
these sons on Saturday, May 18, 1968.- She was furnished the names 
of the contacting-agents and the telephone number of the'Federal 
Bureau of Investigation Office in-St. Louis with the request that , 
she have her sons contact these agents. . She hesitatingly agreed 
to do this.- • • . ■ . , ' . ■ ' '

■ ' The foregoing contact was made on May 16,'-1968.

‘ A .check of the St. Louis - St. Louis' County Directories, .
telephone book, and files of..the St. Louis Police Department, on,the ■ 
same date failed to disclose current resident addresses for LOUIS GENE 
MENARD, FBI # 517 988 A,'or RAYMOND. OWEN MENARD, FBI # 471 823 7. 
Police Department.records indicated'RICHARD LAWRENCE MENARD, FBI 
# 4 496 848, is currently at .Leavenworth Penitentiary. . ■

MRS. MENARD advised May 21/ 1968, she had advised' ' . ■ 
RAYMOND and .LOUIS MENARD’of the FBI interest, -but ’ neither had ' 
indicated. any intention of- contacting this office. -She continued 
to profess ignorance as to their places of residence and employment 
and claimed inability to contact them. . ■
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RE:

The

NATHAN J. MURPHY - FORMER INMATE

following investigation was conducted by SA
CHARLES S. DUKE at St. Louis, Missouri

Teletype from Kansas City to the Bureau, May 2$, 
1968, indicated that former inmate was paroled. July 28,' 1964, 
from the Missouri State Prison and was discharged from parole 
on January 4, 1967, and could be reached through JOHN A. 
ZITZENZANICH at 3177a Oregon Street, St. Louis.

On May 24, 1968, JOHN A. ZITZ, 3177a Oregon Street, 
St. Louis, Missouri, wap contacted at his residence whereupon 
he advised that his name was ZITZ and not ZITZENZANICH and 
that he did not know.a man by the name of NATHAN J„ MURPHY. 
He said that he had a coupleaf former prisoners staying at 
his place for a short period of time somewhere around three
to four years ago but he could 
He advised that since his wife 
ex-convict he wanted to forget 
no additional information.

not remember their names, 
left him and ran off with an 
the past. ZITZ could offer
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